

CS 71
.P636
1902
1906
Set 2

RECORDS OF THE PIKE
FAMILY ASSOCIATION
OF AMERICA, 1906



RECORDS OF THE PIKE
FAMILY ASSOCIATION
OF AMERICA, 1906



SACO, MAINE
THE STREETER PRESS
1907

FIFTH REUNION OF THE PIKE FAMILY

DURING the months of February and March, 1906, the following notice and proposed amendments to the By-Laws were sent to all the members of the Association and the 1904 records were sent to all of those considered in good standing.

To the Members of the Pike Family Association:

In accordance with the instructions of the Board of Directors I hereby notify you that the next meeting of the Association will be held at the American House, 24 Hanover Street, Boston, Mass., on Tuesday and Wednesday, the 28 and 29 days of August, 1906, and you are all most earnestly requested to be present. Tuesday, the first day, the regular bi-annual business meeting of the Association will be called to order at 10 A. M. for the election of officers and any other business that may come before the meeting, and in accordance with Sec. 10 of the By-Laws to act on the following alterations or amendments to our by-laws.

ARTICLE I.

Sec. 2. Members who are more than one year in arrears for their dues shall stand suspended from receiving any further benefits from the Association until said dues are paid, and members who shall not have paid their assessments when due shall be notified of the fact by mail to their last known address, and the names of those not paying shall be posted in the meeting hall during the next regular meeting of the Association, and at the expiration of thirty days from said posting, if said assessment then remains unpaid the membership of those not paying shall cease, provided, however, that the Board of Directors may remit the penalty for any good and sufficient reason.

Sec. 3. The names of all those who have ceased to be members shall be published in the records of that meeting in which their names were posted and such persons shall not again be admitted to membership, except by unanimous vote of all of the Board of Directors present and voting at any meeting of the Board to which the names of such applicants shall be presented. Said applicants for reinstatement having first deposited with the Secretary all monies due for assessments including those of that year.

Sec. 4. Any member may withdraw from the Association after payment of all dues, by giving written notice of their resignation to the Secretary, but unless such resignation shall be received before the twelfth day of September, of any year, the member so resigning shall be liable for the dues of that year.

Sec. 5. A notice by mail to the last known address of a member shall be construed as a legal notice.

Sec. 6. The presence of no person other than that of a member of the Association shall be permitted in the room during its regular bi-annual business meeting at the hour specified in the call or to any hour to which adjournment may be made except by unanimous consent of the members present. At all other times the friends of the Association shall be most cordially invited.

Sec. 7. No members of the Association shall be entitled to receive more than one copy of its bi-annual records except by loss of fire or otherwise provided that any member may order extra copies for their own special use of the Secretary before the time of publication at not less than 25 cents a copy. Which orders shall be over and above the number ordered by the Association.

Sec. 8. No badge, coat of arms or other insignia of the Association shall be sold to any person not a member. Persons applying for the same must first state that they are members of the Association.

Sec. 9. On resignation or death of a member, or any forfeiture of membership by a member under these by-laws: all their right and interest in the property of the Association shall cease.

ARTICLE II.

Dues. The dues shall be 50 cents a year and shall be payable with the admission fee and afterward shall become due and payable on the twelfth day of September.

ARTICLE III.

Any member may attain life membership by the payment of \$25.

ARTICLE VI.

Duties of Officers. President. The President, or in his absence, one of the Vice-Presidents, in order of their selection, shall preside at the meetings of the Association. If the President and all the Vice-Presidents shall be absent, a Chairman shall be chosen by vote. The President shall preside at the meetings of the Board of Directors, and shall, in conjunction with the Secretary sign all written contracts and obligations unless otherwise provided by special vote of the Association.

Sec. 5. The Board of Directors shall have supervision of all property and money belonging to the Association over and above that necessary for the incidental expenses: shall make or authorize all necessary contracts, and shall have the entire management and control of the affairs of the Association, subject in all respects to such instructions and limitations as may from time to time be prescribed by the Association. The Board of Directors shall have power to discipline and expel members for violation of rules or for other adequate cause.

Part 2. The Board of Directors shall meet at every reunion or meeting of the Association and special meetings may be called by the Secretary at the request of the Presi-

dent or of three members of the Board upon reasonable notice being given of the time and place to other members. Four members of the Board shall constitute a quorum.

ARTICLE VIII.

Sec. 2. The corporate seal shall consist of three Pikes issuing from a wreath with the date 1900 in a plain field and encircling the same the words, "Pike Family Association," U. S. A., 1902.

After the business meeting the day will be in the hands of the Board of Directors and the Association.

Tuesday evening there will be a reception or social gathering of the members of the Association with their friends.

Wednesday, the second day, beginning at 10 A. M., will be the Program day of the Association.

Wednesday evening will be held a Banquet. All those who desire to be present should notify the Board of Directors, if possible, before August 29, that arrangement may be made with the proprietor of the American House.

Please give notice of this reunion through your local papers and notify all of your relatives, or send their names to the Secretary of the Association.

Rooms may be had at \$1.00 per day and upwards. To engage rooms ahead, address, Allen C. Jones, Proprietor, American House, 24 Hanover St., Boston, Mass.

Per Order,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

CLIFFORD L. PIKE, M. D., Sec. and Treas.,

Saco, Maine.

In the month of July notices were sent to the many descendants from the family name registered in the directory of the Association. The Association being on a firm business basis, no effort was made this year to obtain new members by means of personal letters, but neverthe-

less quite a number joined the Association. The reunion was held at a time of the year when many of the local members were away on their vacations and while their absence was in evidence there was quite a good representation of the members from away whose genial faces and enthusiastic deportment made the occasion one of great social enjoyment. Our honored President being ill and unable to be present, only two members of the Board of Directors met and no quorum being present, no business was done before the meeting of the Association.

Tuesday, Aug. 28, with the weather fair and beautiful, in accordance with the notice to its members, the Pike Family Association met in executive session in the parlors of the American House. The meeting was opened at 10 o'clock A. M., with Vice-President Virginia Pike Martin in the chair and the Secretary and Treasurer present. A quorum having been found present, it was voted to accept the Secretary's printed 1904 records that had been sent out to the members.

It was voted to have a reception in the evening, with light refreshments, and Frederic A. Pike, of St. Paul, Minn., Frank C. Pike, of Keene, N. H., and Elbridge N. Pike, of Boston, were appointed by the chair a committee to attend to the same. It was voted to have a banquet the second night and Eben W. Pike, of Cambridge, Mass., James Pike, of North Bergen, N. J., and Elbridge N. Pike, of Boston, were appointed by the chair as a banquet committee. The Secretary's report was read and approved by a vote of the Association. It was as follows:

SECRETARY'S REPORT

The Bi-Annual year for our meeting has again come round and it is with great pleasure that the Secretary of this Association makes his report for 1906. Many names have been added to our directory, making the present number nearly 4,500 to whom invitations have been to some in

an indirect way through other members of the family and thus saving much expense to the Association, and I find some have joined who have received their invitations in this way.

The Secretary's report for 1904 shows the total number of names on the roll of membership at that time to be 527. Since that report was made up 195 names have been added, making the whole number on our list 722. Of this number seventeen have already been reported as having been taken from us and it is again my sorrowful duty to record that fifteen of our number have gone to join that grand reunion on high where there is no separation. Their names are:

Mrs. Mary S. Butler, Mrs. Martha H. Crowe, Gen. Joseph H. Barnes, Mrs. Mary March Gerrish, Mrs. Brad W. Gildersleeve, Mrs. Mary R. Lahar, Arthur Leonard Pike, Calvin B. Pike, Dr. Daniel Lafayette Pike, Rev. Elias Jenison Pike, Jabez Tucker Pike, Moses Dorman Pike, Col. Nicholas Pike, Nathan Crafts Pike and Ivers L. Witherell, for whom the Association should have drawn up suitable resolutions to their memory. The passing of thirty-two of our number from our list leaves us 690 to date.

At the close of the year 1904 the records were ready for publication, but owing to the great amount of work on hand it was impossible to get them printed at that time, so they passed over till the summer of 1905, when they were published by the firm of G. H. & A. L. Nichols of Lynn, Mass., who under bid our Saco friends. Owing to the vast growth of our Association I had fifteen hundred of them printed in order to supply our incoming members of the future. The Historical Societies have become cognizant of the value of our records, and at their request I have presented copies in behalf of the Association to the "New England Historic Genealogical Society, the New York Public Library, the New York Historical Society and the Chamber of Commerce at Colorado Springs, and the Na-

tional Public Library at Washington, D. C. I will again say that all of the half tones in the records were furnished at the expense of members and not by the Association; but I hope with the increased dues and membership fees to be able to do such work in the future without having to ask for assistance from outside the funds of the Association. It is sometimes a trial to the Secretary to locate the members after they have moved from his known address. The records are sent to them and he receives word from the postmaster of that place, "removed, address unknown; a certain parcel of fourth class mail matter will be returned to you on receipt of a four cent postage stamp." He has been quite fortunate this year in locating all but two, Edwin M. Pike of Dover, N. H., and Edwin L. Pike of Newport, R. I. If there are any present who know the addresses of either of these will they kindly make them known at this meeting.

The Secretary found there were quite a number of members who were delinquent and negligent about paying their dues and he has sent notices to such as have paid no dues and written personal letters to them at least twice to each; many have paid their dues, but still there are some who have taken no notice of his letters. I presume there are a class of fickle minded persons in every family but I am sorry to find them in our own. I firmly believed that every Pike or descendant knew his own mind and when such joined the Association they did so because they took great pride in our Family organization, and were willing to contribute their mite for the immense benefits they received from it. There are some, I find, who are willing to go on year in and year out and have the records sent them without contributing a cent, and it was decided by the Board of Directors at our last reunion not to send records to those who were more than two years in arrears for their dues and to report such at our next meeting. This instruction has been pretty well carried out, and I here present a list of

those who have paid no dues or are sadly in arrears for dues that they may be known to their friends who should either pay them or advise their friends to pay. That the members may better understand the meaning of the Association there has been drawn up a set of By-Laws giving implicit instruction as to how a person can join the Association and also honorably withdraw from the same, and how they will be dropped from membership if they fail to pay their dues. There are extenuating circumstances which will excuse a person sometimes from withdrawing from an Association and I think a part of those below are justified in doing so. But when a minister of the Gospel withdraws from an organization of this kind I can find no premises he can take as justifiable. It would seem he has dropped from the sublime to the degenerate, for the morale is extremely bad when he would abjure the one Association that should be most dear to him outside of the ecclesiastical, simply because he sees no "advantage" to him in belonging. Those who have withdrawn honorably by paying their dues up to date of withdrawal are:

Mrs. Daniel C. Pike 61 Queen St., Lowell, Mass.

Edwin T. Pike, Ipswich, Mass.

Mrs. Edwin T. Pike, Ipswich, Mass.

Eleanor Scott Page, Lawrence, Mass.

Rev. Cornelius Pike, New Bedford, Mass.

Mrs. Rev. Cornelius Pike, New Bedford, Mass.

Martha Ella Pike Sanborn, East Hartland, Ct.

S. E. Gilman, Salisbury, Mass.

Mrs. S. E. Gilman, Salisbury, Mass.

Four others have notified me to drop their names from our roll of membership, but I have no right to do so as they did not pay their dues and have not upon receipt of a letter from the Secretary explaining the nature of our By-Laws. These last, I believe, with the exception of one, are justified in doing so on account of sickness and misfortunes in their families.

Many members of the Association have availed themselves of the opportunity to become life members at the present low price of Fifteen Dollars each. Those who have become life members are:

- Miss Laura E. Bennett, Boston, Mass.
- Miss Nellie F. Bennett, Boston, Mass.
- Miss Frances C. Dickerman, Pike, N. H.
- Mrs. Winnifred Pike Emory, Honolulu, Hawaii.
- Mrs. Virginia Pike Martin, Minneapolis, Minn.
- Clayton W. Pike, Philadelphia, Pa.
- Clifford L. Pike, Saco, Me.
- Edwin B. Pike, Pike, N. H.
- Mrs. Edwin B. Pike, Pike, N. H.
- E. Bertram Pike, Pike, N. H.
- Miss Katherine Pike, Pike, N. H.
- Mrs. Oliver S. Wells, Reno, Nevada.

It is to be hoped there are others who will avail themselves of this low price before it is raised to Twenty-five dollars, and become life members, or if they are extremely patriotic to wait till the price is raised and then to do so.

I wish to again call the attention of the members of this Association to the fact that they must notify the Secretary of when they change their residence, as according to the proposed By-Laws the Association will not be responsible if they do not receive their notices and records; that they should report the death of a member as soon as it occurs that it may save the trouble and expense of sending notices and records to such who can never receive them.

Seals and letter headings containing the Coat of Arms are now the order of the day. Those made with the color of the arms are very beautiful and of which we may well be proud. A supply of this paper is on hand and may be had at reasonable prices.

In closing I would again impress upon the members of this Association that it is necessary to notify the Secretary of all the births, deaths, marriages and changes of resi-

dence of the name of Pike or their descendants that the same may be recorded.

CLIFFORD L. PIKE, Secretary.

The Treasurer's report was then read. It was as follows:

TREASURER'S REPORT

Money in the Treasury, Sept. 26, 1904.	\$48.84
Money received for Membership Fees.	98.00
Money received for Dues	155.00
Money received for Life Membership Fees.	180.00
Money received for Official Badges.	91.00
Money received for Souvenir Badges.	33.00
Money received for 13 Coats of Arms.	61.00
Money received for 46 Litho-Coats of Arms.	46.00
Money received for Banquet, Sept. 28, 1904.	63.00
Money paid for reunion, 1906, i. e.: Postage \$30.00; Printing, \$5.50; Envelopes, \$6.50,	\$42.00
Money paid for printing notices to members and 1,000 envelopes for records,	7.50
Money paid sending records to all members.	25.76
Money paid sending records to new mem- bers and correspondence and other in- cidental expenses	21.76
Money paid for printing 1,500 of the 1904 records,	167.95
Money paid for 13 Coats of Arms,	52.00
Money paid for 100 Litho-Coats of Arms and tubes,	51.75
Money paid for freight on records and de- livery,	2.05
Money paid for American House for colla- tion and music and banquet, 1904,	97.00
Money paid Edwin B. Pike for Badges.	192.75
Money due from Albert Leonard Pike, one Coat of Arms,	5.00

Money due from John F. Stanton, one Coat of Arms,	1.00
Money due for 1 Litho Arms and 1 Badge,	1.50
	<hr/>
	\$674.02 475.84

Money in Treasury Aug. 27, 1906, \$101.82.	
Pike Family Association in Account with Edwin B. Pike.	
Sept. 24, 1904, Received of Edwin B. Pike,	
988 official badges,	\$260.12
Sept. 24, 1901, received of Edwin B. Pike	
250 souvenir badges,	31.25
	<hr/>
	\$291.37

Paid Edwin B. Pike to date,	\$192.75
Balance due Edwin B. Pike,	\$98.62

Upon motion of Hon. Elbridge N. Pike it was adopted by a vote of the Association.

After a brief discussion by the members of the Association in regard to the officers for the ensuing term it was voted to immediately proceed to the election of officers and Hon. Elbridge N. Pike of Boston placed in nomination the following names as candidates: For President, Hon. Edwin B. Pike of Pike, N. H.; for first Vice-President, Hon. Herbert A. Pike of 14 Winthrop St., West Newton, Mass.; other Vice-Presidents, Mrs. Maria Freeman Gray of 367 1/2 Twenty-second St., San Francisco, Cal.; Hon. Louis F. Barton of 187 High St., Newburyport, Mass.; Mrs. Virginia Pike Martin of 1809 Portland Ave., Minneapolis, Minn.; Hon. James H. Jenkins of the Custom House, New York, N. Y.; Hon. Elley C. Pike of Mansfield Center, Conn., and Hon. Elbridge N. Pike of 27 India St., Boston, Mass.; for Secretary and Treasurer, Dr. Clifford L. Pike of Saco, Maine; for Board of Directors, Hon. Edwin B.

Pike of Pike, N. H.; Hon. Herbert A. Pike of 43 Winthrop St., West Newton, Mass.; Dr. Clifford L. Pike of Saco, Me.; Hon. Elbridge N. Pike of 27 India St., Boston, Mass.; Hon. Eben W. Pike of City Hall, Cambridge, Mass.; Hon. John Q. Evans of Salisbury, Mass., and Hon. Frank C. Pike of Keene, N. H.

It was voted to accept the names placed in nomination for the various offices and the Secretary was instructed to cast a vote for the Association on them as a whole, which being done, they were declared elected to their respective offices in the Association.

The alterations and amendments to the By-Laws as submitted in the notice to the members were taken up by the Association. Each article and section of an article was acted upon separately and then were adopted by a unanimous vote as the By-Laws of the Association. An additional By-Law was submitted relating to corresponding members which was also adopted by a unanimous vote of the Association. The By-Laws as amended and adopted are as follows:

BY-LAWS OF THE PIKE FAMILY ASSOCIATION

ARTICLE I.

Membership. Any person of the name of Pike, or a lineal descendant therefrom, or a husband or wife of the same, being of good moral character and of Caucasian ancestry, may become a member of this Association upon the payment to the Treasurer of the sum of one dollar.

Sec. 2. Members who are more than one year in arrears for their dues shall stand suspended from receiving any further benefits from the Association until said dues are paid, and members who shall not have paid their assessments when due shall be notified of the fact by mail to their last known address, and the names of those not paying shall be posted in the meeting hall during the next regular meeting of the Association, and at the expiration of

thirty days from said posting, if said assessment then remains unpaid the membership of those not paying shall cease, provided, however, that the Board of Directors may remit the penalty for any good and sufficient reason.

Sec. 3. The names of all those who have ceased to be members shall be published in the records of that meeting in which their names were posted and such persons shall not again be admitted to membership, except by unanimous vote of all of the Board of Directors present and voting at any meeting of the Board to which the names of such applicants shall be presented. Said applicants for reinstatement having first deposited with the Secretary all monies due for assessments including those of that year.

Sec. 4. Any member may withdraw from the Association after payment of all dues, by giving written notice of their resignation to the Secretary, but, unless such resignation shall be received before the twelfth day of September, of any year, the member so resigning shall be liable for the dues of that year.

Sec. 5. A notice by mail to the last known address of a member shall be construed as a legal notice.

Sec. 6. The presence of no person other than that of a member of the Association shall be permitted in the room during its regular bi-annual business meeting at the hour specified in the call or to any hour to which adjournment may be made except by unanimous consent of the members present. At all other times the friends of the Association shall be most cordially invited.

Sec. 7. No members of the Association shall be entitled to receive more than one copy of its bi-annual records except by loss of fire or otherwise provided that any member may order extra copies for their own special use of the Secretary before the time of publication at not less than 25 cents a copy. Which orders shall be over and above the number ordered by the Association.

Sec. 8. No badge, coat of arms or other insignia of the Association shall be sold to any person not a member. Persons applying for the same must first state that they are members of the Association.

Sec. 9. On resignation or death of a member, or any forfeiture of membership by a member under these by-laws; all their right and interest in the property of the Association shall cease.

ARTICLE II.

Dues. The dues shall be 50 cents a year and shall be payable with the admission fee and afterward shall become due and payable on the twelfth day of September.

ARTICLE III.

Any member may attain life membership by the payment of \$25.

ARTICLE IV.

The regular meeting shall be held every two years at such place and time as the Board of Directors may determine.

Sec. 2. Special meetings may be called by the Board of Directors at their discretion.

Sec. 3. Twenty-five members shall constitute a quorum.

Sec. 4. Notices shall be sent to all members by the Secretary at least thirty days before date of meeting.

ARTICLE V.

The officers shall consist of a President, seven Vice-Presidents, Secretary and Treasurer, and the Secretary may also act as Treasurer; a Board of Directors, which shall consist of the President, first Vice-President, Secretary and four others.

Sec. 2. The officers of the Association shall be elected by ballot.

ARTICLE VI.

Duties of Officers. President. The President, or in his absence, one of the Vice-Presidents, in order of their selection, shall preside at the meetings of the Association. If the President and all the Vice-Presidents shall be absent, a chairman shall be chosen by vote. The President shall preside at the meetings of the Board of Directors, and shall, in conjunction with the Secretary sign all written contracts and obligations unless otherwise provided by special vote of the Association.

Sec. 2. *Vice President.* The first Vice-President shall preside at the meetings in the absence of the President and perform the duties incident to his office.

Sec. 3. *Secretary.* It shall be the duty of the Secretary to keep a correct record of the proceedings of the Association and its Board of Directors. He shall have charge of its records, papers and documents; shall have printed within one year succeeding each regular meeting the records of that meeting, and may, if desirable, publish all papers or poems read, the programs of entertainments and illustrations. He shall record the death of any member and the changes of names and residences, and the names and addresses of all the members; shall send to each member the records of the Association when published, and shall send notices and invitations, at his discretion, to all persons in the directory of the Pike Family Association. He shall conduct the correspondence and shall have charge of the seal of the Association. He shall have power to draw upon the Treasury of the Association for all monies necessary for the above enumerated duties of his office.

Sec. 4. *Treasurer.* The duties of the Treasurer shall be to keep a correct record of all money paid into the Treasury and to pay the same out by order of the Board of

Directors, which order shall require the signature of the President, countersigned by the Secretary, except monies for the incidental expenses.

Sec. 5. The Board of Directors shall have supervision of all property and money belonging to the Association over and above that necessary for the incidental expenses; shall make or authorize all necessary contracts, and shall have the entire management and control of the affairs of the Association, subject in all respects to such instructions and limitations as may from time to time be prescribed by the Association. The Board of Directors shall have power to discipline and expel members for violation of rules or for other adequate cause.

Part 2. The Board of Directors shall meet at every reunion or meeting of the Association and special meetings may be called by the Secretary at the request of the President or of three members of the Board upon reasonable notice being given of the time and place to other members. Four members of the Board shall constitute a quorum.

ARTICLE VII.

In case of the death or resignation of any of the above enumerated officers, the Board of Directors are hereby empowered to fill any such vacancy so created.

ARTICLE VIII.

Seal. The Association shall furnish a seal, which shall be known as the Corporate Seal of the Association, to the Secretary, which shall be affixed to all legal documents of the Association.

Sec. 2. The corporate seal shall consist of three Pikes issuing from a wreath with the date 1900 in a plain field and encircling the same the words, "Pike Family Association," U. S. A., 1902.

ARTICLE IX.

The signature of the President, countersigned by the Secretary, with the Corporate Seal shall be affixed to all legal documents of the Association.

ARTICLE X.

Corresponding Members. Any person who shall have performed signal service in historical genealogical research upon the Pike family, and any persons of Pike family descent, not residents of the United States or British America, shall be eligible to election as Corresponding Members of the Association, to whose genealogical collections they will be requested to contribute additional information when called upon or at their convenience.

Corresponding Members shall have no dues to pay as such nor shall they hold any property, vote, or hold any office in the Association but shall be entitled to receive one copy of each publication issued by the Association after the date of their election.

The Board of Directors shall have jurisdiction over the election of all Corresponding Members, also over all their genealogical contributions to the Association.

ARTICLE XI.

If any alteration or amendment of the By-Laws be proposed, a notice of such alteration or amendment shall be published in the notice of the meeting at which action thereon is to be taken, and a majority vote shall be required for its adoption.

Hon. John Q. Evans, chairman of the Maj. Robert Pike Monument Committee, reported that, owing to the illness and death of his father, he had done nothing towards raising funds for the monument but that he thought an active canvass would produce great results from the sentiment of the people. Hon. Robert H. Pike of Union, N. H..

a member of the committee, reported that he had started a paper and raised \$32.00 in his own town. Upon motion of Dr. Clifford L. Pike the same committee were continued in office for the ensuing two years.

Gen. Eben W. Pike of Cambridge introduced the following resolution : That the notice for all future gatherings enclose a return postal or a request be made in the notice for a reply to the invitation, the same to be returned within a few days before the date of meeting. This resolution was adopted by a unanimous vote of the Association.

Miss Frances C. Dickerman of Pike, N. H., was appointed to assist the Secretary in the duties of his office, which she did very efficiently, and relieved him of a great deal of the labor.

Coats of Arms and Lithograph Coats of Arms were an exhibit and several copies of each were sold to the members; also badges and souvenir badges, the latter were the same as those of the previous meeting with the date changed. A picture, nearly life sized, of Gen. Z. M. Pike, representing him as he stood looking from the top of Cheyenne Mountain, upon the lofty apex of Pike's Peak, was hung behind the President's chair, which was a present from the Chamber of Commerce of Colorado Springs and for which the Association offered a vote of thanks.

A communication was read from the Chamber of Commerce (which see under addresses and papers read at the reunion) in regard to the great centennial celebration to be held at Colorado Springs Sept. 25 29, in honor of Gen. Z. M. Pike, the discoverer of Pike's Peak, in which the United States government, the State of Colorado, and the city of Colorado Springs were to take part, which was discussed at great length but definite action was deferred until a later part of the meeting.

Sometime in September the Secretary received a communication from the State Historical Society of Kansas stating that there would be a great Centennial celebration

at Pawnee City, Sept. 26-29, in honor of Gen. Z. M. Pike, who pulled down the Spanish flag and first raised the American flag at that place. The program and other details of which will appear in these records. After considerable discussion it was voted that the next meeting of the Association shall be held early in the month of October, 1908, and the Secretary announces in behalf of the Board of Directors that it will in all probability be held on Tuesday and Wednesday, Oct. 6 and 7, at the American House in Boston.

The hour being late, it was voted to adjourn to meet at the same place at 10 o'clock A. M., on Wednesday, August 29.

Wednesday, August 29. The morning opened bright and fair and the meeting was called upon the scheduled hour with the same officers in their respective chairs. A discussion was held in regard to some excursion round the city as suggested in the notice. Several were suggested, but only a few wished to avail themselves of the opportunity and it was finally decided to let those arrange themselves into parties who wished to go between the hours of adjournment and banquet. The following program was then called:

PROGRAM

1. Piano Solo, Prof. Alfred W. Pike, 3 Willow St., Stamford, Ct.
2. Letter, Sarah Louise Kimball, Palo Alto, Cal.
3. Letter, Hon. Henry Russell Wray, Colorado Springs, Col.
4. The Centennial, Chamber of Commerce, Colorado Springs, Col.
5. Poem, Mrs. Frank D. Sanborn, New Hampton, N. H.
6. Descent from the Early French Kings, Mrs. Maria Freeman Gray, 3674 22nd St., San Francisco, Cal.
7. Extracts from Daly's History of Woodbridge, N. J., Henry M. Walter, 424 Eleventh St. N. W., Washington, D. C.
9. Piano Solo, Prof. Alfred W. Pike, Stamford, Ct.
10. The Earliest Settlers of the Pike Family in New England, Dr. Clifford L. Pike, Saco, Me.

After the banquet in the evening the Association was called to order by First Vice-President Herbert A. Pike, and it was voted to send the Secretary, Dr. Clifford L. Pike, as a delegate from the Association to the Pike's Peak Centennial at Colorado Springs. It was voted that Hon. Herbert A. Pike, Elbridge N. Pike and Miss Elizabeth Pike Davis be a committee to notify all the members and to solicit funds for that purpose.

OAKLAND, CAL., AUGUST 21ST, 1906.

DR. CLIFFORD L. PIKE, SACO, MAINE.

Dear Cousin: Several months ago I received your request for a few words from yours truly to be read at the reunion of the Pike Family which is to be held next week in Boston. That was before the earthquake and fire of April 18th-20th, 1906, and since that time I have been so very busy with office work that, although your request has often come to mind, I have been compelled to put it aside on account of more pressing matters, until here it is time for the reunion and nothing done. I shall have to ask you to simply say a word of greeting to the cousins from one of their California cousins, who wishes she could be with them at the reunion. I know something about reunions myself, the Kimballs in California having held annual reunions for some time.

Last winter I visited at the home of Mr. and Mrs. Zoeth S. Eldredge in San Francisco, overlooking the Golden Gate, and went with Mrs. Eldredge to church Sunday morning. She is a member of the Swedenborgian church, of which Rev. Mr. Worcester is pastor, and after service was introduced to two young ladies named Pike. It seemed rather an odd coincidence. You will recall that Major Robert Pike and his father were members of the church in Salisbury, Massachusetts, of which Rev. William

Worcester was pastor, and with whom both seem to have had disagreements. Major Robert Pike's granddaughter, Elizabeth Stockman, married Jacob Bradbury, whose grandfather was Rev. John Wheelwright, and their son, Jacob, Jr., married Abigail Eaton and had several children, among them two, Squire Jacob Bradbury and his sister Hannah, from both of whom I claim descent. Squire Jacob's son, Moses Bradbury, having been the father of my grandmother, Mary (Bradbury) Kimball, while Hannah (Bradbury) Hearl's daughter Abigail married Joshua Kimball and had Abraham Love Kimball, my grandfather.

In one of the Reunion Pamphlets is a suggestion that the name of the first John Pike's wife was Sarah Washington, daughter of Charles, and that she was of the same family in England as the President. Can any of the cousins send me the direct line back from both Sarah Washington and George Washington, the President, to the common ancestor of both in England? I would appreciate this information. The libraries in San Francisco were, of course, burned by the great fire, and only a few genealogies in private hands are accessible. There is not a set of the New England Historic Genealogical Register on the coast! Everything is gone. It is too dreadful to talk about.

I shall be pleased to hear what progress is made towards establishing a memorial to Major Robert Pike, and referring to the suggestion that a tablet be inserted in the monument to early settlers at Newbury, would suggest that instead Major Robert Pike's memory be honored in some similar way in his home town, Salisbury.

I read with much interest that little story of "Richard Peecke of Tavistok," who was also a champion in his particular way. All the Pike cousins should read it. I think Mr. Ernest McPike is publishing or selling this little story. You doubtless know about it.

With regards to all, and hoping some day to be able to attend the Pike Family reunion, I remain

Very truly yours,

SARAH LOUISE KIMBALL.

Palo Alto, Cal.

PIKE CENTENNIAL

Fitting tribute to the deeds of General Zebulon Montgomery Pike, discoverer of the great mountain peak bearing his name, will be paid by the citizens of Colorado during the last week in September, 1906. Under the auspices of the Zebulon Montgomery Pike Monument association, a centennial celebration will be held at Colorado Springs. It will be military and civic in character and on a scale never before attempted in the west.

Although only recently announced, the plan had its inception ten years ago when the Monument association held a banquet in commemoration of the ninetieth anniversary of the discovery of Pike's Peak. At that time it was decided that the centennial anniversary of the discovery should be observed with appropriate exercises, to include the unveiling of a monument to the intrepid soldier-explorer who blazed the first pathway from the east to the Rockies.

With the approach of the centennial anniversary, the original plans have been enlarged until they have assumed proportions in keeping with the historic significance of the event. From the modest idea of erecting a suitable monument to Pike has grown a program that is national in its interest. It became so important that the United States government will participate. The War Department will send 10,000 regular troops, the Interior Department will send representatives of the tribes of Indians with which Pike came in contact, while Congress will authorize the coining of 100,000 souvenir medallions of bronze and silver. Not only will the troops be a decided feature in themselves, but the occasion will be the first on which all branches of the army have maneuvered in the west and also the first time that a mountainous country has been chosen for make believe war.

The general plan of the program is an allegorical representation of the progress of the Pike's Peak region dur-

ing the centry that it has been known to the white man. The opening day will be devoted to the military, since they represent most nearly Pike and his sturdy little band of followers. There will be a pioneer day, illustrating the "days of '49," when the cry of gold brought the sentinel peak of the Rockies into the knowledge of the world, and a Colorado day, to typify the industries, commerce, agriculture and mining as it is today. The military features will predominate in the entire program, although no sacrifices will be made on this account. The exercises will all be in the open air, free to the public and of a nature to inspire the highest patriotism.

The complete history of the Rocky Mountains will be unfolded, from the bleak November day when Pike first gave the great snow capped peak official position on the map of the United States, to the present day, when the beautiful city at the foot of the peak has become so modern as to be facetiously dubbed "Little London."

To again climb to the vantage point on Cheyenne mountain whence he inspected the peak, Pike would pass through Stratton park, a bit of mountain fairyland that was presented to the city of Colorado Springs by the late millionaire mine owner, Myron S. Stratton. He would not need his horses, as an electric car line runs to the very foot of the mountain. In the event he wished to climb the Peak, he could ride in an electric car line to the depot of the Cog road. This is the highest steam railroad in the world, reaching an altitude of 14,108 feet in a distance of some twelve miles. The round trip is made in a few hours, and while on the Peak the explorer could take his bearings, the temperature, latitude, longitude and secure other scientific data at the United States observatory that crowns the topmost point of the massive granite pile. His party could spend the night at either the Half Way House or at the top of the peak in comfortable quarters, secure against hunger and storm.

Pike started from St. Louis July 15, 1806, on his trip to the Rocky Mountains, or Mexican Mountains, as he called them. He pronounced the country through which he travelled so devoid of sustenance for human beings that it would serve as a barrier for all time in the expansion of the United States. In vivid contrast are the conditions to-day. Pike could now make his toilsome journey from St. Louis to Pike's Peak over either of several great trunk railways, equipped with all the modern luxuries of travel. Where he passed great herds of buffalo he would see cattle grazing on the prairies in equal numbers. The wide plains that staggered his imagination on account of their desolation are now dotted with prosperous farms or ranches. The mountains that appealed to him only for their scenic grandeur have been found to be the treasure vaults of nature that were then waiting to be opened by the hardy frontiersmen who followed Pike nearly half a century later. The great white mountain that he declared could not be ascended by a human being is now the objective point of 100,000 tourists annually. Pike said that the sight of the peak was inexpressibly grand, while modern explorers say the same of the view from the summit of the peak.

History records no more exalted patriot or intrepid soldier than Zebulon Montgomery Pike. His soldier ancestry for generations brought him the Spartan fortitude that alone made possible his achievements for the country he loved so well. Had he not immortalized himself by his remarkable explorations for the government, his name would yet be resplendent in history, in that his military record is one that is rarely duplicated. When only 27 years old he was chosen to lead the most important military expedition of the hour, and when but 34 years of age he was a brigadier general in command of the troops that captured the British stronghold at York (now Toronto) Canada. His death at this battle was highly dramatic and has been

likened to that of Nelson. The captured flag of the enemy was placed under the head of the dying general to ease the pain of mortal wounds. The cheers of his soldiers aroused the stricken young commander and on being told that the fort was captured, he closed his eyes with the remark: "I die content."

A biography of Pike is yet to be written, but his achievements are a matter of record in the archives of the War Department. A diary, kept faithfully from day to day during his explorations, tells in quaint terse style of the tortuous march of the little party from St. Louis to the Rocky Mountains. Even the capture of his papers by the Spaniards at Santa Fe did not serve to destroy the records of the astute young soldier, who had carefully concealed duplicates of his papers in the barrel of his big flint lock rifle and he was afterward able to restore them to original form.

The journey on which Pike discovered the peak was the second that he made under orders from the government. He had previously traced the head waters of the Mississippi to their source, gathering valuable data for the government, making treaties with the Indians and making notes on the British occupation of small settlements. His second journey was to take him through the then unexplored territory of Louisiana. The government wished to know more about the vast tract of land that it was buying from Spain and Pike was selected to supply this information.

With a little party composed of a squad of private soldiers, a physician, guides, Indians and horses, Pike started from St. Louis in July. He was a first lieutenant at the time, but was promoted to a captaincy during the following month. He was not notified of his promotion until a long while afterward, hence the discoverer of Pike's Peak is usually alluded to as lieutenant, rather than as captain, which he really was at the time, or as general, which he became shortly before his death.

The condition of the little party was becoming rather desperate when, on November 15, the "Mexican Mountains" were sighted from the banks of the Arkansas river in western Kansas. Three cheers were given and Pike determined to press on to the "great white peak." The nearest the party came to the peak was on November 27, 1806, when Pike and two followers climbed to the top of a mountain some 15 miles from the Peak. Pike wrote in his diary that the great white mountain seemed to be as high again as the mountain he had climbed and that it would be impossible for a human being to reach the summit. The snow on the mountain that Pike climbed was "middle deep" and the thermometer registered 6 degrees below zero at the minimum. The supplies of the party were at a low ebb, with no game in sight. The clothing of the men was worn to shreds, most of them being without stockings and wearing moccasins that admitted snow and stones freely. Under such conditions it is but little wonder that the brave young soldier thought that the peak was beyond his prowess.

After noting the peak, Pike returned to the Arkansas river at a point where Pueblo now is, continuing his journey into the mountains, thence to New Mexico, where he was captured by the Spaniards. Hardships of every description were suffered by the party before being placed in captivity at Santa Fe. Two of the men had to be abandoned and left to their fate in the hills. They were given a small supply of provisions with the assurance that they would be rescued if the rest of the party found a haven of safety and rest. Pike saw that the promise was kept, and, more dead than alive, the stricken pair were brought into Santa Fe by the Spanish soldiers.

The remains of the distinguished young soldier-explorer lie at Madison Barracks, New York, where they were interred with military honors nearly a century ago. A modest shaft marks the resting place of Pike and a num-

ber of the soldiers who were killed with him. On his body were found two sentences, dedicated to his son, "Preserve your honor free from blemish" and "Be always ready to die for your country."

HENRY R. WRAY,
Sec. Chamber of Commerce,

Colorado, Springs.

A HOME BY NEWFOUND LAKE

To write a poem I am bid,
But if I've talent in that line,
'Tis surely in a napkin hid.
The Muse gave neither word nor sign
As, day by day, I tried to sing,
But I take heart of grace today
For that same Muse has deigned to fling
A simple rhyme or two my way,
Kinsmen, no classic theme I bring;
No tale of ancient Greece or Rome,
I have no gift of tongues, I sing
The annals of a farmer's home,
A quiet home, a humble life,
Far from the city's smoke and din,
The lust of greed, the noise of strife
To that calm spot stole never in,
The farmer's tale, repeated o'er,
No brilliant page in history fills;
'Tis but a type of thousands more
Lived out among New Hampshire's hills,
World-wise this man, friends, might not be,
Not learned, perhaps, in diatribe;
Yet he was of our family,
And the grandfather of your scribe,
To Hebrontown, long since, he brought
A happy, willing, youthful bride,
No labor over hard she thought,
Were it completed at his side,
Their griefs were one and one their joys,
As they reclaimed the wilderness,
To them were born here seven brave boys
And four dear daughters came to bless,

Records of the Pike Family

Here did they teach their children all
 The old-time ways of industry,
 Taught them, while yet in stature small,
 Helpers, not hinderers, to be,
 Here did these twain, soothed by the spell
 Of woods and waves near their abode,
 Learn Nature's gracious lessons well,
 And look, in faith from her to God,

Success seemed ever pleased to crown
 Whate'er they chose to undertake;
 Ah! many blessings rested on
 The little home by Newfound Lake,
 Here did Grandfather Pike grow old
 The fair familiar Lake beside,
 And, when his years of life were told,
 Where he had lived, loved, toiled,—he died,

When he was gone, neighbors, they say,
 Mourned for him, young and old alike,
 Though few a hundred miles away
 Had heard the name of Daniel Pike,
 The story here for you portrayed
 Dearer I hold than classic lore,
 Though since that pleasant home was made
 A century has fled,—and more,

O, kinsmen, bring your splendid toast,
 Of brave deeds let your praise sound clear,
 But I a humble theme will boast,—
 Grandfather's farm I give you here,
 Blame me not, friends; the good old place
 Still holds for me a deathless charm,
 A spell no other can efface,

Because it **was** grandfather's farm,
 The summer fields wave thick with grass,
 The hills still softly lean above
 Now, e'en as then, but friends, alas!
 The farm bears not the name we love,
 I have a fancy, sweet and bold,
 Sometime from out Life's busy race
 To drop,—and, with a store of gold
 Buy back the dear, ancestral place,

There would I fashion, free from care,
A joyous nook, a summer home,
And call, as guests from everywhere,
All of our kinsfolk who would come,
I'd give no welcome cold, outworn,
'Twould be a royal one, instead,
To all who bear or who have borne
The name of Pike ere they were wed.

Bright hours we there might spend each day,
By smiling lake, by rippling stream,
And wood and hill. Sweet teachers they,
But, ah! 'tis nothing but a dream.
O, kinsmen, friends, there comes to me
The hope, with my good-by to you,
Some day to waken, it may be,
And find the happy dream come true.

—MRS. FRANK D. SANBORN.

DESCENT FROM THE EARLY FRENCH KINGS

Authentic historians say that the Franks made an irruption into Gaul about A. D. 420, under their leader, Pharamond, who was said to have been succeeded by 1 Clodion and 1 Meroveus, who was followed by his son 2 *Chil-deric I*, who had: 3 *Clovis I*, King of the Franks; m. Sainte Clotilda, dau. of Chilperic, King of Burgundy, a Christian princess, in consequence of which Clovis and his subjects embraced Christianity. Clovis was the real founder of the first French dynasty in 481. He made Paris the capital and published the Salic laws.

Next came his son, 4 *Chlotar I*, King of the Franks, who had: 5 *Chilperic, I* King of the Franks; m. Fredegunda, by whom he was murdered in 584; and had: 6 *Chlotar II*, King of the Franks, who had: 7 *Blithilde*, who m. Ansbert, and had: 8 *Arnold*, who had: 9 *St. Arnulf*, who had: 10 *Insegis* (*Inseghis*), who m. Begga, dau. of Pepin the Old, Mayor of the Palace, and had: 11 *Pepin of Heristal*, Mayor

of the Palace, who had: 12*Charles le Martel*, Mayor of the Palace (virtually king), m. Lady Rotrude, and had: 13*Pepin le Bref*, Mayor of the Palace, crowned at Soissons in 752 King of the Franks; m. Lady Bertha, dau. of the count of Leon, and had:

14*Charlemagne*, b. 742; sovereign King of France 768; crowned Emperor of the West in 800 by Pope Leo III; m. (1) Hildegarde, dau. of the Duke of Suabia, and had:

15*Louis I, "le Debonnaire,"* King of France and Emperor of the West; m. (2) Judith the Fair, dau. of Welfus I, [Count of Altorf, Duke of Bavaria, a descendant of Pharamond], and had:

16*Charles the Bald*, King of Neustria, m. Ermentrudis, dau. of Odo, Count of Orleans, and had:

17*Louis II, the Stammerer*, King of France, who reigned two years and d. 879; m. Lady Adelheid, and had:

18*Charles III, the Simple*, King of France; reigned twenty-five years; m. (2) Princess Edgiva, dau. of Edward the Elder, son of Alfred the Great, King of England, and had:

19*Louis I, l'Outremer*, King of France, m. 939 Princess Geberga de Saxe, dau. of Henry the Fowler [Duke of Saxony, Emperor of Germany, and gr. gr. grandson of Charlemagne], and had:

20*Charles*, Duke of Lorraine and Brabant; m. Lady Agnes, descendant of Alfred the Great, and had:

21*Lady Geberga*, who m. Lambert of Lorraine, first Count de Mons, and had:

22*Lambert II*, Count de Mons; m. Odo, dau. of Gotheion, Count of Lorraine, and had:

23*Henry II*, Count of Lorraine, who had 24*Godfrey*, Duke of Lorraine, Brabant and Lothar, m. Lady Ida, dau. of Albert, third Count de Namur, and had:

25*Countess Adelicia*, "the Fair Maid of Brabant" [second wife and widow of Henry I, King of England], m. (2) William d'Albini, Earl of Sussex and Arundel, Lord of Buckingham, d. 1176; and had:

26 *William d'Albini*, second Earl of Sussex and Arundel, m. Lady Maud, dau. of James de Sancto Sidonio, and had:

27 *Lady Mabel d'Albini*, m. Robert, Baron of Tattishill, and had:

28 *Robert de Tattishill*, Lord of Buckingham, m. Lady Joan, dau. of Ralph Fitz-Ranulf, and had:

29 *Lady Joan Tattishill*, who m. Hugh de Cayley of Owby, Norfolk, and had:

30 *William de Cayley* of Normanstown, who had:

31 *Jeannette de Cayley* who m. John Lake of Normanstown, Yorkshire, and had:—

Here follow *eight* generations of the *Lake* family to 40 *John Lake* of Erby, who m. Margaret, dau. of Col. Edmund Reade of Wickford, Essex and his wife, Elizabeth Cooke, and had:

41 *Mannah Lake*, who m. in 1643, Capt. John Gallop, Jr., of Stonington, Ct., b. in England about 1615; killed by the Indians in the Narragansett Swamp fight, Dec. 19th, 1675, and had:

42 *Esther Gallop*, b. July 21, 1653; m. Dec. 17, 1674, Henry Hodges of Taunton, Mass., b. 1652; d. Sept. 30, 1717; son of William Hodges; [who came from England about 1633; d. April 2, 1651], and had:

43 *Joseph Hodges*, who d. at the age of 55 in the early part of the "Old French War," in which he bore the commission of Major in the British army. He m. March 11, 1712, Bethiah Williams, dau. of Thomas Williams, son of the first Richard, and had:

44 *Jonathan Hodges*, b. Feb. 26, 1721; d. July 18, 1795, in Norton, Mass.; m. Abigail Sanford, b. 1790; d. Sept. 29, 1795; and had:

45 *Bethiah Hodges*, b. 1741; d. 1829 in Norton; m. Nathaniel Freeman ["Ensign"], who d. July 2, 1753, aged 52; and had:

46 *Nathaniel Freeman*, b. in Norton July 10, 1781, d.

in New Salem, Mass., Jan. 22, 1811; m. Sally Martin [who was of the sixth generation from Myles Standish and John Alden], b. Aug. 26, 1811; d. Oct. 1861; and had:

47 *Daniel Sanford Freeman*, b. in Norton, March 1, 1805; d. in New Salem, April 18, 1887; m. in Hadley, Mass., May 5, 1831, Aehsa Bridgman Kimball [who was of the sixth generation from James Pike, who came to Massachusetts about 1640; also of the seventh generation from Nathaniel Dickinson of Wethersfield, Ct., and Hadley, Mass., who was a descendant of Rollo the Dane, first Duke of Normandy], b. in Hadley Oct. 28, 1808; d. in New Salem, March 24, 1851; and had:

48 *Maria Freeman*, b. Feb. 15, 1832; m. John Henry Gray, Judge of the Fifth Judicial District of Iowa, b. in Maryland, Oct. 16, 1831; d. in Des Moines, Iowa, Oct. 11, 1865; and had:

George Freeman and *Henry Nathaniel Gray* of San Francisco, forty-ninth generation from Merovoens, from whom came the title, Merovingian, given to the first race of French kings.

MARIA FREEMAN GRAY.

San Francisco.

THE EARLIEST SETTLERS OF THE PIKE FAMILY IN NEW ENGLAND

At the earnest solicitation of many of the descendants I shall confine this paper almost wholly to the descendants of Capt. John Pike of Newbury, Mass., and Woodbridge, N. J., and in doing this I shall take up for a space his ancestry in England.

In "Visitations of Somerset" by Weaver, Page 64, I find, "Pikes Ash in Martoek and of Moorlinch, also called West Bridgewater, Arms Per pale Az. & Sa. over all three crescents Or." This coat of arms belonged to Sir Richard

Pyke living the eighth year of King Richard Second, or in the year 1385; this line as given is 2Thomas Pyke, 3Huge Pike living in the third year of King Henry's reign or the year 1425, his wife was Elizabeth. 4Thomas Pyke, 5John Pyke. 6William Pyke of Moorlinch, Somerset, m. Alice, heir of Thomas Bowring of Bowring's Leigh in West Arlington, Co. Devon. He had two sons, Robert and Stephen Pyke; 7Robert Pyke married Eliza Thornhill, and Collinson's History of Somerset says he was the son and heir and was assessed at Pike's Ash. (Here the spelling changes to Pike), Somerset in the 22nd year of the reign of Henry VIII or in the year 1531; his son and heir was 8Thomas Pkye, who married Mary Stowell of Cathelstone; he is given as of Moorlinch. Collinson says he had a daughter, 9Elizabeth Pyke, who married James Leigh or Reynolds, who spoiled the estate and also—"tradition says there was a Stephen Pyke, brother of Elizabeth." This is highly improbable because he would have been the heir and inherited the estate. It would therefore seem that this line ends with Elizabeth so far as the family name is concerned.

10Stephen Pyke, son of 6William, married Dorothy Cuffe (Cutts) [I see Weaver has the word Cutts enclosed as an interpretation of the name Cuffe.] He settled or is given as of Bridgewater, Somerset, where his children were born. He had two sons and one daughter, viz.: John, Francis (who had sons Jemonel and Jones) and Elizabeth.

11John Pyke of Bridgewater, 1573. The Vicar of Bridgewater gives baptism as Nov. 1, 1572; married Jane, daughter of Richard Castleman; (the Vicar also gives the following baptisms: Robert Pike, baptized Aug. 29, 1582, and Robert Pike bapt. July 29, 1583, who is the Robert Pike of Providence, R. I., without any doubt, as proved by land transactions after he came to America.) A communication from Moorlinch vicarage, Bridgewater, is as follows: "Bridgewater, Oct. 19, '01. I have had your let-

ter about John Pike born before 1600, and the Vicar of Martock has sent me the similar letter you wrote to him. I regret that I can give you no information as to any of the Pikes mentioned by you as the Moorlinch registers only date back to 1652. I believe, however, that the Pike family lived here in the 14th and 15th centuries, and were then the great people of the neighborhood. There is in the belfry of Moorlinch church a much mutilated female effigy, which was formerly recumbent upon a tomb in a niche under a window on the north side of the church. This is supposed to represent the wife of one of the Pikes who lived before the reformation. There is no inscription, no coat of arms or crest attached. I very little doubt that Moorlinch is the place from which your John Pike came. Yours faithfully, Fred Horthcote Smith, Vicar of Moorlinch.

My reasons for believing the above to be our direct line are that Sir Richard Pyke was the only Pyke I have been able to find in England whose coat of arms bore the crescents; this original coat of arms belonged through this line to William Pyke and his first heir, Robert, whose son, Thomas, was father of Elizabeth, where the family name became extinct. William's other son, Stephen, began a new line and still retained the crescents with the chevron which indicates the beginning of a new line, or in Heraldry "an Ordinary, supposed to betoken the accomplishment of some memorable work, or the completion of some business of importance, generally the foundation of his own family by the bearer." We know that Robert Pike of Providence came from Bridgewater and I believe that he was a brother of John Pike of Newbury; I believe that investigation of land titles in England will prove my claim. I find in the Second Series of Notes and Queries Vol. 7, "The church of St. Bartholomew in the city of London which was pulled down to enlarge the avenues to the Royal Exchange, was built mainly at the charge of Thomas Pike, sheriff of Lon-

don in 1410 whose ancestor, Nicholas Pike, was sheriff in 1332." Should this Thomas Pike be a son of Sir Richard Pyke it would give us one generation at least farther back, as Nicholas would be the father of Sir Richard. This is only speculation as it is not known from what place Sir Richard came when he settled in Bridgewater in Somerset County.

In "marriage licenses London, 1520—1610," I find "William Pyke, yeoman, married Nov. 6, 1583, Emma Langforde, widow, of all Hallows." A genealogist some years ago facetiously remarked to me that one John Pike in stating that he came from Longford, England, referred to his mother and not to any place. I did not know at the time that Longforde was not her maiden name, and the genealogist is now dead and therefore forgiven.

I now come to John Pike, eighth from Sir Richard, and first of the line in America who came to this country, sailing from Southampton April 6, 1635, in the ship "James," Capt. Cooper, arriving in Boston on Monday, ^{See also} ~~August~~ ^{Records 1914 p. 20} June 3, 1635. ^{June 3, 1635} James S. Pike in "The New Puritan," says with wife Sarah. What authority he has for making the statement his wife's name was Sarah or that his wife came with him, I do not know. I believe it was based upon the record of the death of Sarah Pike at Newbury, Nov. 19, 1659,† and she was presumed to be his wife because her name was not given among his son's, Capt. John Pike's children, but as he died May 26, 1654, and having made his will not mentioning any wife, such presumption cannot be maintained. The early Newbury records are quite complete and they do not record the death of his wife, so without any further evidence one would conclude she died before he came to this country. He settled at first in Ipswich but after a short stop at that place removed to Newbury and settled on the banks of Parker river and was made freeman in 1642. He was a highly educated man and wrote a fine hand, unknown among the uneducated of his times

* Sarah, daughter of John Pike b. Sep 13, 1655 Newbury Vt.
 † Sara, daughter of John Pike d. Nov 19, 1659 Essex Co. Quart. Ct.

and left his country at the time of the great Reformation, and has often been classed as among the many "dissenters" who left their native land for the "Freedom to worship God." Quoting from the history of the Pike family—"He was a man of pronounced opinions, bold in his assertions, but as history has shown, educated a lawyer, he undoubtedly knew how to keep within the bounds of prudence in his intercourse with the element of the times. It must be remembered that the Church and State were practically the same in those days and that the laws of the land were largely scriptural, and that law was argued from a Bible standpoint; he was conversant with theological reasonings and as the theological reasonings for the preservation of peace as adopted by the lawyers and the theological reasonings for the salvation of souls as adopted by the ministry, must differ in some of their essential points, is it to be wondered at that on May 5, 1638 after having listened for a time to a certain discourse, "It is ordered that John Pike shall pay two shillings and six pence for departing from the meeting without leave and contemptuously," and before this, Feb. 21, 1638, John Pike, Robert Pike and three others were fined two shillings and six pence apiece for being absent from town meeting at eight o'clock in the morning, having had due and fit warning." But he must have risen high in the esteem of his fellow citizens, for in 1647, he was one of the chosen to administer "the prudential affairs of the town," and in 1648 to "end small causes" which he did in an exemplary manner as the court records show. His will was probated Aug. 3, 1651, in which he mentions daughters Dorothy, who married Daniel Hendrick, Ann who married John Fiske, Israel, who married Henry True, and sons John and Robert; *grandsons*
Thomas of Virginia and John son of Robert
 Captain John Pike, ninth from English and second from American lines, was born at Bridgewater, England, (presumably) in 1605 if he is the one who sailed "from ye port of London Nov. 26, 1635 for Barbadoes, aged thirty."

He settled in Newbury, Mass., where he married Mary Tarville or (Tarbell). (See Coffin's history of Old Newbury where he asks a grant of land for his brother, Thomas Tarville) Well educated, he soon became one of the leading men of the place, was educated a lawyer, was elected selectman in 1617-1648, was chosen to end small causes in the town during the years 1651-1654-1656-1657-1660; was elected deputy to the General court in 1657 and 1658, which position he most ably filled. He was educated a Congregationalist, but later in life became a Presbyterian. Quoting from the history—"When in Newbury there was a contention in the church regarding church discipline because the pastor and teacher had changed their minds after the first few years, from the Congregational to the Presbyterian form. It seems the matter was carried into court for adjustment, and he being summonsed as a witness testified 'That he was present at the gathering of the church of Newbury, and that he heard the pastor, Mr. Parker, preach from the eighteenth chapter of Matthew and 17th verse, wherein the preacher held forth that the power of discipline belonged to the whole church and he (John Pike) strongly favored his doctrine, he taking notes of what was said.'"

Early in 1665 he removed to Woodbridge, N. J., and on May 21, 1666, articles of agreement were signed between Governor Carteret, John Pike, Abraham Tappan and Joshua Pierce in behalf of themselves and associates of Woodbridge and Piscataway, whereby a colony was established over which he was chosen Judge and Governor which position he held for many years. After his return to Newbury in 1671 he was chosen a member of Governor Carteret's council and in 1675 was appointed captain of the militia and by this appellation he was generally known. His first wife having died, he married, June 30, 1685, Elizabeth Fitz Randolph of Piscataway. He died in January, 1688-9, and his remains are buried in the Presbyterian

cemetery at Woodbridge. His children were: Joseph; John, who died young; Hannah, who married Obadiah Ayer; a son, who died 1645; Mary, who married Richard Worth; John; Ruth, who married Abraham Tappan; ~~Sarah~~ ^{Sarah d. y} ~~angel~~; Thomas and Sarah, who died 1659. Joseph Pike, tenth generation from Sir Richard, and third American, was born Dec. 26, 1638; married Susannah Kingsbury and settled in Newbury. He was at "Ye fall fight at Springfield" (Mass.) 1676, also in garrison at Springfield June 21, 1676, during King Philip's war, at Hadley and other places. He occupied many offices of public trust, being selectman 1690-1 and 1692-3, assessor 1691, and was elected deputy to the General Court 1690 to 1692, was deputy sheriff, and while passing from Haverhill to his home was killed by Indians Dec. 5, 1694, at a place called Pond Plain. The township of Ringe, Cheshire Co., N. H., was granted to John Tyler, Joseph Pike and others, officers and soldiers in the expedition to Canada anno 1690. His children were Sarah, born 1666, married Anthony Morse; John born 1668, died 1668; Mary, born 1670, perhaps married Richard Woodmaney of Salem; John, born 1671; Joseph, born 1671; Benjamin, born 1676, died, unmarried, 1760; Hannah, born 1679, married Joseph Hslev; Thomas, born 1681. Of these children John married Mrs. Lydia Little and his children were all daughters. Joseph married, December, 1695, Hannah Smith, daughter of Lt. James and Sarah (Coker) Smith of Newbury, where she was born March 23, 1675. He settled in Newbury and was a lieutenant in the army. He was selectman in 1699 and held various other public offices. He was one of the original grantees of the township of Salisbury, N. H., Dec. 9, 1736, and June 12, 1738, he was taxed for one Calash, a carriage. I find the town of Newbury on June 12, 1748, granted Joseph Pike and others leave to fish upon condition that they give one salmon to each of the two ministers. He died in 1757. His children were: Joseph, born 1694; John, born

1698; Thomas, born 1700; James, born 1703; Sarah, born 1705, died 1705; Sarah, born 1706, married Stephen Glacier; Joseph, born 1694, married, Dec. 5, 1722, Lydia Drury, settled in Newbury, removed to Tuksbury and in 1745-6 to Dunstable, where he died 1778. His children were: Benjamin, born 1723, and Daniel, born 1725, married Sarah Kendall, settled in Dunstable where his children were all born; afterwards lived in Hebron and Groton, N. H., where he died 1795. His children were, Sarah, b. 1747, d. 1764; Isaac, b. 1749, m. Mary French and Mrs. Sarah Whitney. He left one dau., Polly, who m. Lt. Willard Cummings, and all lived in Tyngsboro, Mass. He was in the Rev. war; James, b. 1751, m. Ruth Ingalls, was in Rev. war, from Dunstable; 1780 he moved to Westfield, Mass., and later to Hebron, N. H., where he died, 1820. His children were James, m. Sally Day; Thomas T., m. Mary M. Trask; William, m. Ruth Blood; John, m. Tryphena Swan, and Hannah who m. Asa Hobart; Huldah, b. 1773, m. John Ingalls; Joseph, b. 1756, m. Abigail Sawtelle, lived in Hollis and Brookline, N. H. His children were, Joseph, m. Mary Hoyt; William, m. Ruth Blood; Perley, m. Polly Cross; Newhall, d. at sea, unm.; Mary, m. Jonas French; Lucy m. Paul Davis; Moody, served in 1812 war; Ralph, m. Meribah Hoyt; Luther, m. Jane Boynton; Rufus, m. Nancy Fulton; Hannah, m. Samuel Peabody; Abigail; Betsey; Eli, and Nathan or Daniel; Lydia, b. 1759, m. Enoch Jewett; Uriah Drury, b. 1761, m. Hannah Keyes, settled in Hebron. His children that lived were, Isaiah, who m. Charlotte Hickok, lived in Boston, Erie Co., New York; Hannah, m. William Ladd; Rhoda, m. Thaddeus Hickok; Uriah, m. Nancy Page, father of U. S. Senator Austin F. Pike; Jonathan Keyes Pike, m. Lucina Graves; Esther, b. 1763, m. Stephen B. Goodhue; Daniel, b. 1765, m. Sarah French, and Susannah Estabrook and settled in Hebron where he died in 1821. His children were, Ebenezer F., b. 1787, m. Susannah Wise; Sally, b. 1789, m. John Wal-

lace; Moody, b. 1791, m. Laura Graves; Susannah, b. 1793, m. Jeremiah Davis; Col. Rufus, b., 1795, m. Mary George; Luther, b. 1798, m. Almira Warner; Ezekiel, b. 1808, m. Sarah Hutchins; Eliza, b. 1810, d. young; Elizabeth, b. 1813, m. Orrin Drake Kimball; John F., by second wife; Thomas Pike, b. 1767, m. Ruth Keyes, settled in Hudson and afterwards moved to Hillsboro, N. H., where he died 1838. His children were Justus, b. 1792, m. Charlotte Blodgett and Mary Baker and Mrs. (Bailey) Barnes; Rebecca, b. 1791, m. Daniel Wetherbee; Eber, b. 1796, m. Mary C. Dakin and Sarah B. Dakin; Anna, b. 1798, m. Daniel Trask; Sally, b. 1810, m. — Wilson; Mahala, b. 1803, m. Daniel B. Willoughby; Joseph Furbush, b. 1805, m. Eliza Rogers; Marinda, b. 1806, m. William Graham; Eldad Proctor, b. 1809, m. Lucinda Chapman; Moses Pike, b. 1769, m. Polly Ball, and settled in Hebron, N. H. His children were Drury, b. 1792, died 1795; Daniel, b. 1794, d. young; Lucinda, b. 1796, m. John Boswell; Polly, b. 1797, m. John Nason; Isaac, b. 1799, m. Irena Dole and Mrs. Sarah (Morse) Noyes, was father of Edwin B. Pike, president of our Association; Lovica, b. 1804, m. Caleb Page; Ruth, b. 1802, m. James Harriman; Daniel, b. 1804, m. Sarah Athens; Arthur Livermore, b. 1806, m. Nancy Flanders; Tamar, b. 1807, m. Calvin May; Moses, b. 1809, m. Clarissa Phelps; Drury, b. 1811, m. Louisa A. Burbank, and Samuel, b. 1814, m. Sarah B. Roberts and Mary Jeffers.

Benjamin Pike, b. 1723, son of Joseph and Lydia Drury, m. Elizabeth. I have been unable to find her maiden name; he settled in Dunstable but died in Amherst, N. H., in 1803, was in the Revolutionary war. His children were, Rachel, b. 1747, d. 1754; Elizabeth, b. 1751, m. John Twist; Lydia, b. 1753, d. 1754; Zachariah, b. 1755, m. Hannah Lovejoy, lived in Dunstable and Bedford, N. H., and Jay, Me. His children were, Zerai, b. 1778, m. Betsey Farrington; Hannah Lovejoy, b. 1780, m. Hilton Fuller; Jonathan Lovejoy, b. 1782, m. Mary Choate; Hezekiah, b. 1786, m.

Ann Jeffers Crafts, is grandfather of Herbert A. Pike, our vice president: Benjamin, b. 1789, m. Susannah Ford, second Morse; James, b. 1796, m. Augusta Goding; Luther, m. Lydia Cole; Eli, d. young; Jerusha, m. Bethuel Paine; and Susan who m. Alexander Dascomb; Rachel, b. 1757, m. Jonathan Twiss or Twist; Benjamin, b. 1759, m. Esther Abbott, lived in Amhurst, Mt. Vernon, N. H., and Burlington or Montpelier, Vt. His children were, Ephraim, m. Nancy Ray; Benjamin, lived in Boston, d. without issue; James, m. Rhoda Jones; David, m. Lydia Broad; Betsey m. — Hazelton, and Paul Upham; Abigail, m. Ezekiel Holt; Esther, m. Abijah Wheeler; Polly, m. James Merrill; Enoch, b. 1762, m. Abigail Hildreth, lived in Amhurst, Mt. Vernon and Merrimack, N. H. His children have not all been found. Such as I have are, Jacob, served in 1812 war; Mark Woodbury, m. Nancy Cook; Nancy, m. Thomas Reynolds; Mary, m. Daniel Phelps. Going back to John Pike, fifth generation, b. Feb. 24, 1698, son of Lt. Joseph and Hannah Smith Pike. He m. Mary Eames and Abigail Parkhurst. He settled in Framingham, Mass., till after his second marriage, 1728, when he returned to Newbury, where he died, 1752. His children were, Gersham, b. July 15, 1727; Mary, b. Oct. 15, 1730; Elizabeth, b. Dec. 23, 1734, and Lydia, b. Aug. 9, 1739. Of these I know but little. Gersham Pike was captain in a N. H. company, and was at Plaistow and Kingston, N. H.

Maj. Thomas Pike, fifth generation, b. Sept. 25, 1700, son of Lt. Joseph and Hannah Smith, m. Lois Perley. He was an officer in the army during the French and Indian wars; he settled in Newbury and was a house-wright. His children were, Hannah, b. 1728, died young; Abigail, b. 1729, m. Johnson Chase; Perley, b. 1732, m. Elizabeth —; lived at Dunstable for a while, then removed to Limenburgh, Mass., where he died, 1774. His children were, Elizabeth, b. 1767, m. Jonathan Dearborn; Sarah, b. 1769, m. Henry Nourse; Thomas French, b. 1772, m. Rebecca Russ and had

children, Perley French Pike, b. 1795, m. Mary Ann Reed; Rebecca Russ, b. 1797, m. Nathan Kendall; Wm. Nourse, b. 1799, was a sea captain, d. at sea unm.; Sophronia Watts, b. 1801, m. Rev. John Bulfinch; Thomas, b. 1803, m. Caroline Ormsby; Henry, b. 1805, d. unm.; Caroline Elizabeth, b. 1812, m. Joseph Kendrick; Benjamin Franklin, b. 1811, d. unm.; Frederick Augustus, b. 1818, m. Mary Ann Garland; Sarah, b. 1821, m. James Farrington Pickering; Sarah, b. 1837, m. Andrew Downer; Lt. Thomas, b. 1749, m. Phebe Brocklebank, settled in New London, N. H., and had Capt. John, b. 1770, m. Eunice Keith and had James Miller, b. 1815, m. Sarah Colby and Abigail (Colby) Palmer; Delia Woodbury, b. 1817, m. Joseph Bean; Hepzibah, b. 1819, m. Benjamin W. Peaslee; John Keith, b. 1824, m. Lucy M. Wilson; Eunice Cummings, m. Benjamin R. Morse; Ziba Huntington, b. 1825, d. unm.; Samuel Keith, b. 1828, m. Hannah Leach; Harriet Ellis, b. 1831, m. Wilson S. George; Mary Hurd, b. 1833, m. Claud Goings; Nancy McKay, b. 1836, m. Austin Goings; Betsey, b. 1787, m. Col. Samuel Knowlton; Joseph, m. Delia Woodbury; Polly, m. Col. Nathan Rogers, and it is said one m. Joseph Chase; Lois, b. 1742, m. Samuel Lancaster; Moses, b. 1744, m. Ruth Moody, settled in Newbury, had one daughter, Abigail, b. Aug. 9, 1774, who m. Samuel Bradley; Hannah, b. Sept. 6, 1748; have no marriage record.

Rev. James Pike, fifth generation, son of Lt. Joseph and Hannah Smith, was born Mar. 1, 1703, m. Sarah Gilman and settled in Exeter and afterwards in Rollinsford, N. H., where he died, 1792. He was a famous school teacher in his younger days. His children were Sarah, b. 1731, m. Paul Brown; Capt. Daniel, b. 1732, m. Anna Carr, and had that lived Samuel, b. 1766, m. Judith Gilpatrick and Sally Haskell and had Betsey who m. Wilkinson; Olive, who m. David Winslow; Daniel, who m. Lavinia Wallingford or Melitable Gilman; Nancy, m. Jonah Woodbury; John, m. Mercy McMillan and Marv ^{L. Starbird}; James, d.

young; Harriet, m. George Reed Rollins; Lydia F., d. young; Lydia F., m. Uriah Foster; Mary W., m. Benjamin Clark; Sarah H., m. Amos Clough; Abigail, d. young; Louisa J., m. Theodore Paine; John, b. 1773, m. Lovey Warren and had, Mary, b. 1796, d. young; Sarah, B., b. 1799; Moses Carr, b. 1800, m. Amelia G. Willey; Daniel, b. 1802, m. Mary E. Wheeler; Elizabeth, b. 1801, m. Wm. Paine; Nahum W., b. 1801, d. 1815; Benjamin F., b. 1809, m. Henrietta Lord; Anna Mary, b. 1811, m. James C. Field; John Samuel, b. 1816, m. Maria Heywood; Francis William, b. 1818, m. Phebe Trowbridge and Belle R. Barnett. Elizabeth, daughter of above Capt. Daniel, m. Benjamin Wentworth. Nicholas, third son of Rev. James, b. 1754, d. 1736; Betsey, b. 1738, m. Joseph Roberts; Abigail, b. 1740, m. Avery Hall; Hannah, b. 1742, d. 1742; Nicholas, b. 1743, m. Hannah Boardman and Eunice Smith. He was the famous author of the first arithmetic written in this country and was principal of the Academy at Newburyport, Mass., many years. His children all died in infancy except the last, Joseph Smith Pike, b. Feb. 21, 1782, m. Sally Rand, settled in Newburyport. His children were, Francis V., b. 1813, m. Catherine R. Holmes; Eunice E. S., b. 1811, m. Rev. Charles E. Lord; Mary Jane, b. 1816, m. Rev. Nathan Monroe; George J., b. 1817, d. 1824; Georgianna, M., b. 1819, m. Amos G. Bartlett; John Nicholas, b. 1823, m. Lucy Bishop. He was judge of the municipal court at Newburyport many years; James, son of Rev. James, b. 1745, d. 1745; John, b. 1747, m. Martha Trevett. His children were besides the first three that died young, Nicholas, b. 1779, m. Sarah Hayes, had one child that died young; James, b. 1777, d. imm. 1812. He was the author of Pike's Spelling book, reader, etc.; Nathaniel Green, b. 1783, m. Betsey Wallingford, and had Martha, who died young; Dr. John Gordon, b. 1817, m. Mary Yetton Cressey and Mrs. Alice (Horn) Waterhouse; Amos W., b. 1819, m. Elizabeth Chadbourne and Mrs. Julia (Hubbard) Shaw, was the fa-

ther of Judge Robert Pike of Dover, N. H.; Phebe, b. 1824, d. 1833; Joseph Trevitt Pike, b. Nov. 22, 1785, m. Sarah Gordon, and had, Martha T., b. 1810, m. Edward Burrill; Sarah J., b. 1812, m. William Carr Pike; Joseph Gordon, b. 1811, m. Eliza Stevens; Nicholas, b. 1816, d. 1817; Col. Nicholas, b. Jan. 26, 1818, m. H. M. Williams and Anna Eliza Pares. He is the father of Joseph Trevett Pike, one of our Board of Directors; James, b. 1820, m. Lucy Ann Johnson; Judge Robert Gordon, b. 1822, m. Ellen M. Brainerd; Charles Sidney, b. 1824, m. Jane Little Thurlow; Ellen, b. 1826, m. Lemuel D. Mudge; Mary Gilman, b. 1828; Hannah Augusta, b. 1831, m. Alfred Bradenburg. The remainder of Rev. James Pike's children are Nathaniel, b. 1749, d. 1750; Joanna, b. 1751, d. 1754, and Mary, b. 1754, m. Nicholas Gilman.

Returning now to John Pike, fourth generation, b. Dec. 28, 1671, son of Joseph and Susannah Kingsbury; he m. Mrs. Lydia (Greenleaf) Little and settled in Newbury. His children were, Judith, b. 1695, m. Nicholas Noyes; Susannah, b. 1697, m. Richard Adams; Lydia, b. 1698, m. Samuel Jaques and Capt. Kendall Pearson; Joanna, b. 1700, m. Thomas Thurlow; Dorothy, b. 1702, m. Timothy Monroe; Joseph, 1th, b. 1705, d. 1705.

Lieut. Thomas Pike, fourth generation, b. Aug. 4, 1681, m. Sarah Little and Mrs. Judith (Knight) Noyes. He was an officer in the army and was in the expedition to Canada in 1716. He had one son, John Pike, b. Dec. 10, 1710, m. Sarah Moody, lived in Newbury and had, Sarah, b. 1733, m. Nathaniel Tenney; John, b. 1735, m. Martha Tappan, and had John, b. 1765, prob. d. young; and Richard, b. 1767, who m. Sarah and Mary Boardman, and had, Martha, b. 1801, m. Roger S. Howard; Sarah Jane, b. 1803, m. Samuel B. Stone; Mary B., b. 1805, d. 1806; Elizabeth Ann, b. 1811, d. young; Rev. John, b. 1813, m. Deborah Adams; Mary Boardman, b. 1815, m. Roger Latham, and Elizabeth Ann, b. 1816, m. I. H. Boardman; Lydia, b.

1737, m. Rufus Wheeler; Thomas, b. 1739, m. Joanna Webber, settled in Rowley, Mass., was in Revolutionary war. His children were, John, b. 1761, m. Lydia Dole, children all died young; Thomas, b. 1769, m. Betsey Rogers, and had, Joannah, b. 1800, m. Thomas Kilborne; John, b. 1801, d. young; George Washington, b. 1803, m. Lucy B. Pulsifer and Sophronia E. Fowler; Charles, b. 1807, d. unm., 1838; Horatio, b. 1813, d. 1822; Richard, b. May 23, 1789, of whom I have nothing further. His twin brother Benjamin m. Sarah Andrews, and had Gen. Albert, b. 1809, m. Mary Ann Hamilton; Ann, b. 1811, d. 1832; Sarah, b. 1812, m. David P. Page; Benjamin, Jr., b. 1815, d. 1833; Adaline, b. 1818, d. 1833; Francis Haskell, b. 1821, d. 1821; Samuel b. 1772; d. probably unm.; Hannah, b. 1741, m. Elias Cheney; Elizabeth, b. 1747, m. Paul Stickney; Joseph, b. 1751, m. Lois Tenney and had Sarah, b. 1772, m. Moses Stickney; Lois, b. 1774, m. Spofford Stickney; Mary, b. 1777, m. Mark Cheney; Samuel, b. 1780, d. unm.; John, b. 1782, was a lawyer in Winterport, Me., d. 1816; Daniel, b. 1785, m. Dorcas Plummer, lived at Bangor, Me., had one daughter named Alice Pike; Col. Elijah Parish, b. 1788, m. Nancy Sampson, lived at Frankfort, Me., and had Marcus Sampson, b. 1822, d. 1811; Loisa Tenney, b. 1824, m. George Albert Peirce; Joseph Samuel, b. 1826, m. Martha J. McComb; Alfred Washington, b. 1791, m. Martha Williams, was principal of several high schools. His children were, Martha Laura, b. 1817, d. unm.; Alfred Washington, m. Abigail Atkinson Freeman, was principal of several high schools; Samuel John, b. 1828, was principal of Oliver High school at Lawrence, Mass., was a poet of some note; Joseph G. W., d. unm.

Benjamin, son of John and Sarah Moody, b. June 29, 1751, m. Dorothy Tenney and had nine children. Six of them died unm. Those who m. were Mary, b. 1788, m. George W. Severance; Sarah, b. 1793, ^{b. 1821, unm.} m. ~~Mark Cheney~~, and Benjamin, Jr., b. 1798, m. Huldah Dorman and had

Rev. Alphus Justus, b. 1828, m. Eliza Brownel Perkins; Alettina Philena, b. 1829, d. 1844; Rev. Gustavus Dorman, b. Aug. 6, 1831, m. Sarah Jane Tuttle; Benjamin Flavius, b. 1832, d. 1855; Arethusa Elizabeth, b. 1834, m. John Andrew; Huldah Florilda, b. 1835, unm; Ithamar Evadner, b. 1834, d. 1866; Amanda Dolly, b. 1838, m. Edwin S. Clifford; Minerva Aehsah, b. 1840, d. 1842; Adeliza Minerva, 1842, m. John Fiske, Baxter Payson, b. 1845, m. Sarah J. Gould; Moses Dorman, b. 1850, d. unm. 1903.

Returning to the descendants of Capt. John Pike, his son, John, b. Mar. 30, 1650, m. Sarah Stout of Middleton, N. J., and lived in Woodbridge, where he died 1714; his children were John, b. 1677, d. 1677; Sarah b. 1679, d. 1680; Joseph, b. 1680, d. 1680; John, b. 1681. Unless he settled in Canterbury, Ct., I have nothing of his marriage and children; Joseph, b. 1683, d. young; Sarah, b. 1686, d. young, so far as I know; Mary, b. 1687, m. Maj. Richard Cutler; Hannah, b. 1689, m. Obadiah Ayer; Penelope, b. 1690; probably d. young as not mentioned in will; Zebulon, b. Aug. 17, 1693; Joseph, b. Feb. 16, 1694.

Zebulon Pike, b. 1693, m. Jeanet Ferman, who, with a friend, Margaret Anderson, came from Scotland at the time of the religious persecutions and arrived in the ship "Caledonia" at Perth Amboy, N. J. He was in Col. Thomas Parker's Reg't, war of 1715; he d. 1762; his two children were John, b. 1718, m. Hannah Phillips, of whom I have but little; and James, b. 1721, who m. Mary Herriot; lived in Woodbridge and had James, b. 1749, of whom nothing proved; Zebulon, b. Sept. 18, 1751; Margaret, b. June 1, 1753, m. Gage Inslee; Jeanet, b. Feb. 21, 1755, m. Jonathan Gage, and Robert, b. 1757, died at sea, unm.

Col. Zebulon Pike, b. 1754, m. in New York city, Apr. 17, 1775, Isabella Brown and settled at Lawrenceburg, Ind. He was an officer in the Revolutionary army and some of his children were born in Camp, as was his son, Gen. Zebulon Montgomery Pike; his commissions as cap-

tain and Major were signed by George Washington and that of Colonel by Thomas Jefferson. They are in the possession of Mrs. Sarah Sturdevant or her children at Larned, Kansas. He was noted for his bravery and the Indians called him the "Great Brave." He always visited their wigwams without any fear in making his treaties with their tribes. He died July 27, 1831. His children were Mary, b. Nov. 19, 1775, died Nov. 28, 1775; Gen. Zebulon Montgomery Pike, b. Jan. 5, 1779; Jane, b. Apr. 19, 1783, d. Apr. 29, 1783; James Brown, b. May 1, 1781; Eliza, b. Feb. 15, 1787, d. Apr. 21, 1787; Mariah Heriot, b. Aug. 22, 1789, m. Thomas Wardell and Anderson Gage; is the mother of Mrs. Sarah Sturdevant who belongs to our Association; Wm. R., b. Dec. 21, 1790, d. Aug. 22, 1791; George W., b. Apr. 7, 1793, d. Jan. 30, 1812; Gen. Zebulon Montgomery Pike, m. Clarissa Harlowe, dau. of Capt. John Brown, who settled in Boone Co., Ky. (Capt. John Brown was a cousin to Isabella Brown.) He left but one child that was old enough to marry, Clarissa, who m. John Cleves Symmes Harrison, son of Gen. William Henry Harrison. His brother, James Brown Pike, m. Jan. 12, 1815, Elizabeth Carberry, lived at Lawrenceburg, Ind., but the last of his life at Kirksville, Iowa, where he died 1855. His children were: George Washington, b. 1815, m. Prudence Jane Ross; Montgomery, b. 1818, m. Lucy Jenison; Joseph, b. 1823, died Mar. 6, 1893, m.m.; Zebulon Wardell, b. 1825, d. War of 1861, m. Mary Callender; John Brown, b. 1827, m. Eliza Frazer, now living at Kirksville, Ia.; Anderson Gage, b. 1830, m. Hannah Fenton; Isabella Brown, b. 1832, m. Lieut. William Mann; Catherine, b. 1821, d. 1843, m.m.

Thomas Pike, son of Capt. John and Mary (Tarville) Pike, born Dec. 7, 1657, m. Jan. 25, 1686, Elizabeth Parker, second, Aug. 11, 1689, Hester Bunn, and third, June 30, 1699, Mary Phillips. He settled in Woodbridge and had, possibly by his first wife, Charles, as his name oc-

curs in the town records, but I have nothing farther of him; Thomas, b. Sept. 30, 1690; Nathaniel, b. May 29, 1692; Joseph, b. Apr. 30, 1694; Mercy, admitted to church with Nathaniel, 1708; Nathaniel, b. 1692, m. July 23, 1715, Grace Turnbull and had Thomas, b. 1716, m. Elizabeth Bloomfield, and had Mary, b. 1738, and Grace, b. 1740, d. 1740; Mary, b. 1718; Nathaniel, b. 1719, d. young; William, b. 1722; Nathaniel, b. 1725, m. 1747, Sarah Gach; Hester, b. 1727, probably d. young; Joseph, b. 1694, m. 1716, Elizabeth Frazer, and died 1730. His children were: John, b. 1718; Timothy, b. 1720; Sarah, b. 1722; Elizabeth, b. 1725.

I am sorry to say that the Woodbridge records end here with the Pike records, but I presume that many will be found in other towns which are still to be looked up. At a future meeting I will give the line of John Pike, fourth Gen., if of Capt. John Pike's line, but whom I believe to be of John Pike of Roxbury, because the names of all the Canterbury, Ct., family coincide with those of Jarvis, son of John of Roxbury.

CLIFFORD L. PIKE.

Corrections 1907 by L. P. Fackard

DEATHS REPORTED TO AUGUST 1, 1907

- Pike, Alvin, b. Waterford, Me., Apr. 28, 1811; died Jan. 24, 1907.
- Pike, Albert Leonard, b. Stark, N. H., Dec. 12, 1867; died 1903.
- Pike, Calvin Britton, b. St. Joseph, Mich., Nov. 18, 1832; died Apr. 30, 1906.
- Pike, Miss Ella M., b. Boston, Mass., July 21, 1845; died June 22, 1907.
- Pike, Jabez Tucker (in last report Jay Tucker) b. Cambridge, Mass., Aug. 20, 1819; died Sept. 4, 1905.
- Pike, Capt. John C., b. Eastport, Me.; died 1905.

- Pike, Moses Dorman, b. Topsfield, Mass., Feb. 22, 1850; died Apr., 1903.
- Pike, Nathan Crafts, b. Aug. 4, 1830; died Feb. 15, 1906.
- Pike, Lieut. Rowland S., b. Yarmouth, Nova Scotia, Oct. 17, 1816; died Mar. 7, 1906.
- Barnes, Gen. Joseph H., b. Hingham, Mass., June 25, 1833; died Jan. 16, 1906.
- German, Mrs. Alva, b. Brantford, Ont., Canada, Apr. 14, 1835; died Dec. 4, 1906.
- Gerrish, Mrs. Mary March, b. Salisbury, Mass., Feb. 1, 1817; died Mar. 18, 1906.
- Gildersleeve, Mrs. Irad W., b. Mattituck, N. Y., July 17, 1843; died July 2, 1905.
- Jenkins, James Henry, b. New York City, Dec. 15, 1835; died 1906.
- Remick, Mrs. Mary Jane, b. Meredith, N. H., Mar. 5, 1825; died Jan. 8, 1907.
- Wilson, Mrs. Henry A., b. —; died June 27, 1905.
- Witherell, Ivers L., b. Millboro, Mass., Dec. 11, 1821; died Mar. 17, 1906.

**MEMBERS ADDED SINCE PUBLICATION OF
LAST REPORT**

Pike, Arthur Clark,	Cranford, N. J.
Pike, Charles,	Morrison, Colo.
Pike, Charles M.,	116 More St., Worcester, Mass.
Pike, Charles Orville Stanley,	Greenfield, Ohio.
Pike, Charles W.,	331 K St., So. Boston, Mass.
Pike, Clayton W.,	121 Race St., Philadelphia, Pa.
Pike, Doremus W.,	West Chester, Pa.
Pike, Edward C.,	Hicksville, N. Y.
Pike, Miss Ethel,	Hicksville, N. Y.
Pike, Miss Gertrude S.,	Woburn, Mass.
Pike, Rev. Grant E.,	23 Dixon St., Allegheny, Pa.

- Pike, Herbert R., Waterbury, Vt.
 Pike, James, North Bergen, N. J.
 Pike, J. A., Box 111, Lindsay, Ind., Ter.
 Pike, Loren Dwight, Willoughby, Ohio.
 Pike, Mrs. Loren Dwight, Willoughby, Ohio.
 Pike, Montgomery,
 Room 322 Bixby Blk., Long Beach, Cal.
 Pike, Manley Herbert, 333 4th Ave., New York, N. Y.
 Pike, Manville Thomas, Gladwin, Mich.
 Pike, Mrs. Manville Thomas, Gladwin, Mich.
 Pike, Miss Mary E., R. F. D., 2, Box 61, Putnam, Ct.
 Pike, Nathaniel Marston, Greenfield, Ohio.
 Pike, Miss Nellie B., 982 Hayes St., San Francisco, Cal.
 Pike, Paphro Ditus, Northfield, Vt.
 Pike, Walter Raleigh, 211 East 18th St., New York, N. Y.
 Pike, William Day,
 The Century Bank, 5th Ave., at 20th St., New York, N. Y.
 Albery, Mrs. Faxon F. D.,
 31 Lexington Ave., Columbus, Ohio.
 Aitkin, John Harley, Huntington, Oregon.
 Aitkin, Mrs. John Harley, Huntington, Oregon.
 Brady, William T., Jr.,
 109 West 122nd St., New York, N. Y.
 Brady, William T., Jr.,
 109 West 122nd St., New York, N. Y.
 Burleigh, Freeman Harrison, Laramie, Wyoming.
 Cheney, Robert C., 10 2nd St., Newburyport, Mass.
 Craig, Mrs. Freeman P., 23 Hill St., Marlborough, Mass.
 Ewings, Mrs. C. Herbert, Tarrytown, N. Y.
 Gale, Eli Pike, 232 Newbury Ave., Chicago, Ill.
 Glover, Truman W., Lisbon, N. H.
 Greeley, George E., Box 131 Marlborough, Mass.
 Leggett, Mrs. Esther Smith,
 123 Monument St., Colorado Springs, Col.
 Lougee, Miss Ina Beatrice, 12 Walnut St., Nashua, N. H.
 McPike, Eugene Fairfield,
 1 Park Row, Room 606, Chicago, Ill.

Neumann, Mrs. Sarah Elizabeth Hayes,	206 Mulbury St., Newark, N. J.
Paine, Francis Warren,	Walla Walla, Wash.
Peirce, Albert,	Frankfort, Me.
Prouty, Walter Vernon,	Spencer, Mass.
Rollins, Mrs. Annie Pike,	Falls Church, Va.
Sanborn, Mrs. Emma Pike,	2910 Pasadena Ave., Los Angeles, Cal.
Smith, Charles David (Lawyer),	111 Main St., Gloucester, Mass.
Stewart, Mrs. William Ellis,	Jefferson, Iowa.
Tower, Mrs. Jennie M. Pike,	211 East 18th St., New York, N. Y.
Tumy, Percival Goff,	Rising Sun, Ind.
Walter, Henry M.,	121 11th St., N. W. Washington, D. C.
Wells, Mrs. Edward,	19 Graham St., Biddeford, Me.
Wells, Mrs. Olive Sheldon,	Reno, Nevada.
Whiting, Frank M.,	Johnson, Vt.
Williams, Mrs. George J.,	Le Claire, Iowa.

**NAMES CORRECTED OR CHANGED WITH CHANGES
OF RESIDENCES**

Pike, Addison Ross (Lawyer), (60 State St., Room 101.)	108 Church St., Winchester, Mass.
Pike, Arthur Lloyd (From Pittsfield,)	113 Summer St., Pittsfield, Mass.
Pike, Arthur Worcester (From San Francisco,)	209 Citizens Nat. Bank Bld'g., Los Angeles, Cal.
Pike, Charles O. (From Boston,)	118 Millett St., Dorchester Center, Mass.
Pike, Mrs. Charles O. (From Boston,)	118 Millett St., Dorchester Center, Mass.
Pike, Miss Cora B. (From Boston,)	118 Millett St., Dorchester Center, Mass.

- Pike, Rev. Clarence (From Connecticut.) Ashland, Mass.
 Pike, Ezra B., Jr. (From N. H.)
 17 Exchange St., Lynn, Mass.
 Pike, Edwin Stevens (From Richland St.,)
 15 Whitman Road, Worcester, Mass.
 Pike, George Willis (From Springfield,) Holyoke, Mass.
 Pike, Hezekiah Woodruff (From Salida,) Mentor, Ohio.
 Pike, James Francis (From Gile.)
 64 Washington St., Oshkosh, Wis.
 Pike, John Charles (From Brookfield,) Sanbornville, N. H.
 Pike, Mrs. John Charles (From Brookfield.)
 Sanbornville, N. H.
 Pike, John Libby (From Hazel Park.)
 227 Springfield Ave., Everett, Mass.
 Pike, Miss Marion H. (From Bigelow.)
 64 Greenleaf Ave., Cambridge, Mass.
 Pike, Oscar Garfield (From Malta,) Silvis, Ill.
 Pike, Miss Rachel F. (From Worcester.)
 So. Hadley, Mass.
 Pike, Richard Abbott (From Minneapolis, Minn.,)
 Flat 6, 250 Virginia St., Buffalo, N. Y.
 Pike, Sherman Bacon (From St. Louis, Mo.,)
 McKay Bld'g., Portland, Oregon.
 Pike, Tremmore William (From Victor,)
 869 Aconia St., Denver, Colo.
 Pike, William Edward (From Lake St.,)
 17 Bowler St., Lynn, Mass.
 Pike, William Edwin (From Hazel Park.)
 119 Main St., Everett, Mass.
 Pike, William Leslie (From Keystone Place.)
 Shady Side Place, Calumet, P. O., La.
 Baldwin, Mrs. E. (formerly Annie Edwards Greenleaf,
 Newburyport, Mass.,)
 17 So. Wendell St., Schenectady, N. Y.
 Brown, Mrs. Caroline P. (From First.)
 111 Front St., Exeter, N. H.

- Burdett, Mrs. James Edwin (From Swampscott.)
10 Ocean St., Lynn, Mass.
- Codman, Mrs. S. Josie (From Clark St.)
547 Eastern Ave., Lynn, Mass.
- Cole, Mrs. Harriet Pike (From Stanmore Pl.)
198 Warren St., Roxbury, Mass.
- Cummings, Mrs. Henry (From Cortland.)
East Homer, N. Y.
- Dolliff, Mrs. Herbert L. (From Broadway.)
11 Pearson St., Somerville, Mass.
- Fairfield, Mrs. Abbie P. (From Danvers.)
Off Elliot St., East Danvers, Mass.
- Gray, Mrs. Maria Freeman (From 22nd St.)
2550 Vallejo St., San Francisco, Cal.
- Hale, Ralph Tracy (From Newburyport, Mass.)
409 East 15th St., Indianapolis, Ind.
- Hale, Mrs. Ralph Tracy (formerly Miss Margaret S.
Greenleaf, Newburyport, Mass.)
409 East 15th St., Indianapolis, Ind.
- Heritage, Herbert Pike (From Brookline, Mass.)
Lempster, N. H.
- Heritage, Mrs. Herbert Pike (From Brookline, Mass.)
Lempster, N. H.
- Hornick, Mrs. William Verne (From 18 St.)
535 So. 15th St., Ft. Dodge, Ia.
- Jones, Willie Edward F. (From Astoria.)
Huntington, Oregon.
- Leighton, Mrs. Ellen Pike (From E. Cambridge.)
24 Greenleaf Ave., Cambridge, Mass.
- Nichols, Miss Emma L. (From New Dorchester)
45 Sanford St., Mattapan, Mass.
- Northrup, Mrs. Sonoma Margaret (From Morrison.)
3320 W. 38 Ave., Denver, Col.
- Page, Arthur B. (From Creswell, Oregon.)
Weyburn, Saskatchewan, Canada.
- Peirce, Mrs. Philip Owen (Formerly Ida Brenda Pike,
New York City.) 207 Huntington, Ave., Boston, Mass.

- Pierce, Miss Edna Stickney (From Marblehead,
67 No. Common St., Lynn, Mass.)
- Piper, Mrs. Fred W. (Formerly Edythe M. Barton, New-
buryport, Mass.,)
1 Otis Place, Newburyport, Mass.
- Rinals, Dr. Ralph Frank (From Market,)
11 Essex St., Lynn, Mass.
- Rust, Mrs. George Erastus (From Boston, Mass.,)
Hesper, Iowa.
- Seward, Mrs. Frank D. (From Providence, R. I.)
R. F. D., 4, Attleboro, Mass.
- Sibley, Mrs. Charles R. (From Marblehead,)
67 No. Common St., Lynn, Mass.
- Sibley, Miss Edna Ruby (From Marblehead,)
67 No. Common St., Lynn, Mass.
- Vining, Mrs. Eva A. (Formerly Eva A. Pike,)
Livermore Falls, Me.
- Watkins, Mrs. Francis M. (From Brookline, Mass.,)
Wolfboro, N. H.

The names of the following persons having been posted in the meeting hall during the regular meeting of the Association, Aug. 28 and 29, 1906, for non-payment of dues according to the by-laws, and the thirty days having expired from said posting, such persons who bear the said names have ceased to be members of the Association:

- Pike, Mrs. Addie M.
120 Waterman Ave., E. Providence.
- Pike, Miss Alice H., 2 Barstow St., Allston, Mass.
- Pike, Albert Hilton, Epping, N. H.
- Pike, Charles Sumner,
1033-1031 Marquette Bldg., Chicago, Ill.
- Pike, Miss Carrie B., 2 Barstow St., Allston, Mass.
- Pike, David B., 120 Waterman Ave., Providence, R. I.
- Pike, Elroy P., Salisbury, Mass.

- Pike, Mrs. Elroy P., Salisbury, Mass.
Pike, Edwin I., 124 Mill St., Providence, R. I.
Pike, Freeman Dudley, Milton, N. H.
Pike, Gordon B., 111 5th Ave., New York, N. Y.
Pike, Miss Gertrude Irene,
2604 No. Eighteenth St., Philadelphia, Pa.
Pike, George H., Newfields, N. H.
Pike, John Q., Epping, N. H.
Pike, Mrs. John Q. (Sadie M.), Epping, N. H.
Pike, John S., Exeter, N. H.
Pike, Mrs. John S., Exeter, N. H.
Pike, James O., Newfields, N. H.
Pike, Mrs. Louise, Natick, Mass.
Pike, Mrs. Margaret A., 6 Gordon St., Newburyport, Mass.
Pike, Mrs. Mark H., 87 Lilly Ave., Lowell, Mass.
Pike, Miss Nellie May,
2604 No. Eighteenth St., Philadelphia, Pa.
Pike, Ray, East Brentwood, N. H.
Adams, Mrs. Lucy A., (Box 12,) Exeter, N. H.
Adams, Miss Alice Walton, Smithtown, N. H.
Allen, Miss Carrie M.,
11 Greenwood St., Amesbury, Mass.
Bartlett, Moses S., Salisbury, Mass.
Breed, Mrs. Mary A., 38 Breed St., Lynn, Mass.
Breed, Archie F., 38 Breed St., Lynn, Mass.
Buswell, George W., Salisbury, Mass.
Buswell, Mrs. Annie Cilley, Salisbury, Mass.
Burbank, Sylvanus W.,
Box 17, Livermore Falls, Me.
Burbank, Mrs. Sylvanus W. (Celinda E.)
Box 17, Livermore Falls, Me.
Blaisdell, Mrs. Clara A. Kendrick, Billerica, Mass.
Currier, Jonathan B., Salisbury, Mass.
Coffin, Miss Mary H., Salisbury, Mass.
Coffin, Miss Hannah Buswell, Salisbury, Mass.
Coffin, Mrs. Anna E., Salisbury, Mass.

Coffin, Amos Buswell,	Salisbury, Mass.
Crowe, Charles H.,	East Stroudsburg, Pa.
Dow, Fred,	Salisbury, Mass.
Dow, A. Warren,	Salisbury, Mass.
Dow, Mrs. A. Warren,	Salisbury, Mass.
Eaton, Miss Nellie C.,	Salisbury, Mass.
Gorring, Mrs. R. H.,	Peabody, Mass.
Holbrook, Giles Whitman,	Wellfleet, Mass.
Humphrey, B. B.,	Peabody, Mass.
Humphrey, Mrs. B. B. (Ada)	Peabody, Mass.
Hull, Mrs. H. W.,	Plymouth, N. H.
Haskell, Mrs. Annie M.,	26 Olive St., Newburyport, Mass.
Heald, Rev. Katherine Pike,	San Raphael, N. M.
Jones, George H.,	29 Crescent St., W. Newton, Mass.
Jones, Mrs. George H.,	29 Crescent St., W. Newton, Mass.
Jones, Herbert Pike,	29 Crescent St., W. Newton, Mass.
Marston, Mrs. Otis,	Hampton, N. H.
Morrow, Roscoe Allen,	Farmington, Me.
Pettengill, Wm., F.,	1969 Michigan Ave., Los Angeles, Cal.
Pettengill, Mrs. Edith Pike,	1969 Michigan Ave., Los Angeles, Cal.
Pettengill, John Q. A.,	466 So. Chicago St., Los Angeles, Cal.
Pettengill, Mrs. John Q. A.,	466 So. Chicago St., Los Angeles, Cal.
Rolfe, Mrs. Charles A.,	Princeton, Me.
Stanton, John F.,	Topeka, Kansas.
Stevens, Howard Whittier,	Salisbury, Mass.
Swain, Mrs. Emma F.,	3 Temple St., Haverhill, Mass.
Tuttle, Mrs. Lizzie S.,	Hillsboro Bridge, N. H.
Torsey, Mrs. Charles M.,	87 Lilly Ave., Lowell, Mass.
Towne, Mrs. Abbie W.,	128 Maple St., Danvers, Mass.
Usher, Ellis B.,	Wells Bld'g., Milwaukee, Wis.
Veasey, Henry,	Northwood, N. H.

Wright, David B.,	Merrimac, Mass.
Wright, Mrs. Cynthia A.,	Merrimac, Mass.
Wright, John B. M.,	Merrimac, Mass.
Walker, Mrs. John,	Salisbury, Mass.
Whitney, Mrs. Sarah Amanda,	

3 Prescott Pl. Dorchester, Mass.

CLIFFORD L. PIKE

Secretary.

LIBRARY OF CONGRESS



0 006 812 058 5